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          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. Welcome to the Committee for Civil Service

          4  and Labor. My name is Joe Addabbo, I chair the

          5  Committee, and again I thank you all for being here.

          6                 Before I get started, let me just

          7  welcome some of the people who are sitting here with

          8  me. First, my colleague Mike Nelson. We have to my

          9  immediate right here, Harold Gates, our Legal

         10  Counsel, and her first Civil Service and Labor

         11  hearing, Elisa Chae, our legal counsel. Elisa, thank

         12  you very much for your help, and welcome. I wish you

         13  a lot of luck.

         14                 I also would like to thank my legal

         15  aid, legislative aid, Jeff Gottlieb, and Jake

         16  Herring for being here. I thank the Sergeant-At-Arms

         17  for making sure we have law and order in this room.

         18  And, again, I'd like to thank all of you for being

         19  here today as well.

         20                 On May 21st, 2004, this Committee

         21  held an oversight hearing on the One-In-Three Rule.

         22  From that hearing came legislation signed into law

         23  by Mayor Bloomberg on, coincidentally, November 9th,

         24  2004, two years ago today, creating an annual report

         25  by DCAS on information regarding the Civil Service
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          2  exams, eligibility list, and the use of that list by

          3  City agencies.

          4                 On October 17th, 2005, this Committee

          5  had its first hearing on the first report issued by

          6  DCAS and today we will have our second hearing on

          7  the second annual report issued by DCAS.

          8                 What the Committee is concerned with

          9  is with the City agency's adherence to the

         10  One-In-Three Rule and the proper use of the

         11  eligibility and promotional list.

         12                 This Committee intends to work with

         13  DCAS and the Administration in ensuring that our

         14  City workforce gets its fair share at equitable

         15  treatment from other City agencies with regards to

         16  the hiring and promotional opportunities. And,

         17  again, I thank you all for being here and for

         18  participating and hopefully we could have some good

         19  dialogue on this report.

         20                 Our first panel is from DCAS, the

         21  Department of Citywide Administrative Services, and

         22  today we have Mitchell Paulszek, Deputy General

         23  Counsel, and we have Stephen Dobrowsky, Director of

         24  Certification.

         25                 Gentlemen, I thank you very much for
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          2  being here today on behalf of Commissioner Hirst and

          3  DCAS, and if you will just please state your name

          4  and give your testimony, I would appreciate it.

          5                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Good afternoon,

          6  Chairman Addabbo, and members of the Committee on

          7  Civil Service and Labor. I am Stephen Dobrowsky,

          8  Director of Certification in the Division of

          9  Citywide Personnel Services for the Department of

         10  Citywide Administrative Services, commonly referred

         11  to as DCAS.

         12                 I am joined by my colleague Mitchell

         13  Paluszek, Deputy General Counsel for Personnel Legal

         14  Matters at DCAS.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: If I may

         16  interrupt you for a second, if you would just speak

         17  a little louder and pull the mic a little closer.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 MR. DOBROWSKY: It is my pleasure to

         20  be here again, and I thank you for this opportunity

         21  to provide the Committee with a review of the annual

         22  report regenerated pursuant to Local Law 50 of 2004.

         23                 Earlier this year, DCAS submitted

         24  this annual report to the Mayor, Comptroller, Public

         25  Advocate and Speaker of the City Council. The report
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          2  contains information regarding the Civil Service

          3  eligible list established during calendar year 2005

          4  in the use of eligible lists by agencies.

          5                 As detailed in Section 12-2006 of the

          6  New York City Administrative Code, the law

          7  specifically requires seven sets of statistics.

          8                 I will now explain the components of

          9  the law and our major findings.

         10                 Pursuant to the first two subsections

         11  of Administrative Code Section 12-206, DCAS must

         12  record information regarding each eligible list

         13  established during 2005, and the dates such eligible

         14  lists were established.

         15                 During 2005, 56 open competitive

         16  eligible lists were established and 127 agency and

         17  division promotion lists are established.

         18                 The next subsection of Administrative

         19  Code Section 12-2006, governs information regarding

         20  the number of persons appointed or promoted from

         21  each eligible list and agencies to which those

         22  appointments or promotions were made.

         23                 During 2005, there are a total of

         24  15,026 such appointments and promotions made by 41

         25  different agencies. The report also includes
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          2  information regarding the number of persons

          3  appointed or promoted on a provisional basis during

          4  the reporting year, the agencies to which such

          5  appointments were made. As required by

          6  Administrative Code Section 12-206, subsection

          7  (b)(4).

          8  During 2005, there were 5,361 provisional

          9  appointments and 1,447 provisional promotions, in

         10  total 6,808 provisional actions.

         11                 As specified in Administrative Code

         12  Section 12-206, subsection (b)(5), DCAS next reports

         13  information regarding the number of persons who were

         14  "considered and not selected," generally referred

         15  to as being CNS'd, three times from promotion lists

         16  and agency-specific open competitive lists during

         17  the reporting year.

         18                 Because, however, the three

         19  considerations that candidates may receive while on

         20  such lists do not necessarily occur within one

         21  calendar year, the report also includes those

         22  persons who were CNS'd for a third and last time in

         23  2005. Using these parameters, 1,240 candidates were

         24  CNS'd for a third time during 2005.

         25                 Administrative Code Section 12-206,
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          2  subsection (b)(6) requires that the report include

          3  information regarding the number of persons removed

          4  from eligible and promotion lists and the reasons

          5  reported to DCAS for such removals. We include both

          6  "temporary" and "permanent" removals in this

          7  report. Temporary removals - sometimes referred to

          8  as "offside" actions - may occur for a variety of

          9  reasons, including failure to report for an

         10  interview, failure to report for a medical or

         11  physical test, declination of an appointment, or

         12  failure to report to work after appointment. Upon

         13  request, a candidate can automatically have his or

         14  her name restored to the eligible list three times

         15  after temporary removals. Permanent removal from an

         16  eligible list occurs after a fourth "offside"

         17  action. The report shows a total of 21,989 removal

         18  actions during 2005:93 permanent removal actions and

         19  21,896 temporary removal actions.

         20                 Finally, Administrative Code Section

         21  12-206, subsection (b)(7) requires that the report

         22  include information regarding the number of persons

         23  restored to eligible lists and the number of persons

         24  restored to promotion lists, after having been

         25  removed.
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          2                 In 2005, there are 202 instances with

          3  individuals who were CNS'd three times, were

          4  restored to a list at the request of an agency, and

          5  there were 2,486 instances where persons temporarily

          6  removed from lists were subsequently restored.

          7                 I would remind the Council that

          8  because a person may be restored to a list more than

          9  once during a year, this statistic reflects a total

         10  number of restoration actions in the reporting year,

         11  and not the exact number of individuals restored to

         12  eligible lists.

         13                 Thank you, again, for this

         14  opportunity to discuss DCAS's annual report on Civil

         15  Service eligible lists, examinations and provisional

         16  appointments promotions as created by Local Law 50

         17  of 2004.

         18                 I will now be happy to answer any

         19  questions you might have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I want to thank

         21  you very much for the testimony before us, and I

         22  want to say that I failed to acknowledge and thank

         23  our Policy Analyst Joan Povolny. Thank you, Joan,

         24  for your help on this. And, again, Joan, I want to

         25  thank you very much for the work on the report.
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          2  Again, the second annual report. With the first

          3  hearing that we did last year, it was obviously kind

          4  of -- it was kind of hard to compare that first

          5  report to anything because there was no previous

          6  report, but now we have a second report that was

          7  easier, obviously, to compare to the previous year's

          8  report. So, I appreciate the comparisons when you

          9  did it.

         10                 I am going to make a respectful

         11  request here. I respectfully request, this was the

         12  report, and, you know, I didn't have my decoder ring

         13  at the time, and it was a bunch of numbers, and,

         14  again, I know a lot of work went into it, it's

         15  detailed, the executive summary was very good and I

         16  appreciate that because that obviously put this into

         17  some sort of intelligible language we could all work

         18  with, but I'm going to respectfully request that we

         19  expand a little bit more on the executive summary.

         20  Maybe even do the comparison for the years prior, or

         21  even just the previous year. But this report was

         22  kind of difficult to go through, but the executive

         23  summary was very helpful.

         24                 I guess we'll go generally first, and

         25  then our questions will get a little more specific.
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          2  Generally speaking, looking at the numbers

          3  generally, is DCAS concerned with any, maybe one

          4  specific agency, or one specific list that is just

          5  not functioning well, or functioning properly?

          6                 Does one agency stick out where

          7  you've had to reprimand them to correct their

          8  procedures as far as you utilizing the list

          9  properly?

         10                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Not any agency that I

         11  can think of off-hand. In general, during the course

         12  of a year we send out certifications, actually

         13  multiple certifications to agencies where

         14  provisionals are serving. We follow up with the

         15  agencies to make sure that they are using the lists,

         16  that they are using the lists properly and that they

         17  return reports back to us in an expeditious manner

         18  so we can update our records.

         19                 We find for the most part agencies do

         20  tend to comply with the Civil Service law and use

         21  the eligible list.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Of the times

         23  that you had to, again, notify an agency that there

         24  might have been questionable practices, or issues

         25  with regard to the list, how many of those notices
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          2  to the agencies did DCAS hand out throughout the

          3  past year?

          4                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Most of the time these

          5  tend to be telephone calls to the agency personnel

          6  officers to their staff, in terms of trying to

          7  clarify some of the issues that we have come across,

          8  or if there has been a time lag in terms of

          9  returning the dispositions to us, call as sort of a

         10  follow-up.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Are these phone

         12  calls documented, in any way, at DCAS? Again, is

         13  there any record kept of these phone calls?

         14                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Most of the phone

         15  calls tend to be over very specific technical

         16  issues, where we would ask an agency to give us some

         17  explanation of exactly what they meant by their

         18  input or they may have left off a document, which we

         19  are following up on in terms of getting a copy of.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Does DCAS track

         21  these phone calls they make to the agencies to see

         22  if there is any trends, or a particular agency,

         23  again, having a problem with the list?

         24                 Because that's my concern, if these

         25  phone calls are not documented or tracked in any
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          2  way, you know, DCAS may not be in a position to see

          3  some trends with an agency who is having -- or even

          4  reluctant to use the list.

          5                 MR. DOBROWSKY: No, we don't have any

          6  formal tracking system for these phone calls.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So, when I ask

          8  you a question of whether one agency sticks out more

          9  than another, really that question may not be able

         10  to be answered because you don't basically keep

         11  track of the problems that you may be having with an

         12  agency.

         13                 MR. DOBROWSKY: It's more of a matter

         14  of I guess what you refer to as institutional

         15  knowledge, the people, the staff that are working in

         16  the certification unit, in terms of the issues that

         17  they bring to my attention, regarding an agency or a

         18  list in terms of whether or not it's moving quickly

         19  or moving at all.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. So,

         21  drawing upon that institutional knowledge, is there

         22  anything that you can enlighten us here with today,

         23  as far as, you know, what kind of phone calls go out

         24  to these agencies and maybe is there one agency that

         25  has had more phone calls than others, given the
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          2  institutional knowledge that you have?

          3                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Not in terms of any

          4  one agency that would tend to stick out in my mind

          5  as being less compliant than other agencies.

          6                 One of the issues that some agencies

          7  have a much larger number of lists that are

          8  certified to them, so just by the fact that they

          9  have so much more activity, there may be more

         10  follow-up, but that does not necessarily mean that

         11  they are remiss in their actions to comply with the

         12  Civil Service Law or the use of the eligible list,

         13  it's just that they give us so much more business if

         14  you'd like to refer to that, that there is just much

         15  more contact with some agencies and with other

         16  agencies.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm going to

         18  make another request, just for the sake of

         19  efficiency, if we could somehow, if not document,

         20  but somehow track what agencies, and, again, we want

         21  to work with you, what agencies may have a problem

         22  with either the list or may not be hiring from the

         23  list. I'm hearing complaints and I guess I'm

         24  guessing that you may have had some problems with

         25  certain agencies, but if you're not tracking them,
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          2  it's kind of hard to discuss this. So, again, I'm

          3  going to ask that DCAS does a little better job as

          4  far as tracking where the jobs might exist in the

          5  hopes of correcting these problems with these City

          6  agencies, and, again, their reluctance to possibly

          7  call from the lists.

          8                 What criterias do you use, because

          9  obviously these lists are a product of the exams,

         10  what criteria is used for the frequency of exams?

         11  Again, generally speaking, before we get to the

         12  specific numbers?

         13                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Well, generally the

         14  eligible resulting from exams last for four years.

         15  So, usually we look at a four-year cycle. There is

         16  communication between various units within DCAS, if

         17  a list is about to expire, or if a list is about to

         18  be exhausted, so that the Examinations Bureau is

         19  aware of the fact that there may be a need to move

         20  up a schedule for a particular examination. But both

         21  of these actions, in terms of monitoring list usage,

         22  and also the agency's response to appointment, gives

         23  us an idea to how quickly we have to schedule

         24  another examination.

         25                 Much of this is more art than
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          2  science. It's hard to really pinpoint when the list

          3  will be exhausted. That really depends on turning

          4  over in an agency, agency hiring needs, programmatic

          5  needs and so on. So, sometimes you really can't tell

          6  whether or not a list will last for the full four

          7  years or may wind up being exhausted earlier than

          8  four years because of the agency needs.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Is DCAS moving

         10  in a direction of possibly with certain exams having

         11  them more frequently? Having them come more

         12  frequently?

         13                 MR. DOBROWSKY: For certain titles we

         14  do give exams quite often where we have high

         15  turnover, in titles very critical to the operation

         16  of the City, such as police officer we give quite

         17  frequently, the promotion examinations for the

         18  uniformed forces we tend to give on a very

         19  accelerated basis, compared to other examinations,

         20  because of the critical nature of those titles, and

         21  to the extent that we can, we look at the other

         22  titles and also tend to provide the agencies with

         23  the list as quickly as we can.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Frequency of

         25  exams is going to be an issue that this Committee
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          2  will have a further discussion on with DCAS, because

          3  it is an issue, and obviously for the sake of seeing

          4  how we can create a more frequent time span for

          5  these exams. Again that's a conversation we would

          6  like to have in the future.

          7                 MR. PALUSZEK: I would just like to

          8  point out that to a certain extent, it's a function

          9  of how large of a list is created by the giving of

         10  an exam. A list for sanitation worker, for example,

         11  is very, very long, and ending that list earlier

         12  than four years, which would be a consequence of

         13  giving a test more often, really could disappoint an

         14  awful lot of people that are on a list without any

         15  chance of being appointed.

         16                 So, to a certain degree, frequency

         17  has to be seen with an overlay of what kind of lists

         18  are produced from an examination.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I agree, and I'm

         20  also sure DCAS knows of certain titles that had not

         21  had exams for maybe ten years or so, you know, and

         22  those are the ones obviously, and I agree with

         23  Sanitation, but there is others that have, again, a

         24  huge gap between exams and those are the ones I'd

         25  like to address at a future time.
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          2                 At this point we have questions from

          3  Council Member Nelson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Right. Thank

          5  you, Mr. Chair. Welcome.

          6                 I'm just going to go to the

          7  provisional employees. There were about 30,000 in

          8  the City as of today?

          9                 MR. DOBROWSKY: That's a rough number,

         10  yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay. And I

         12  think probably we all read about there was a

         13  provisional employee that I don't remember the

         14  amount, I think it was approximately 18 years, she

         15  was just fired and had no recourse and no way to

         16  basically I guess go on at the moment.

         17                 MR. DOBROWSKY: That can happen,

         18  depending upon the particular title and whether or

         19  not -- there are some titles where we tend to have

         20  high turnover, and the lists that are established

         21  tend not to fit all the agency needs, so the agency

         22  may be able to retain some people in provisional

         23  status.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes, I didn't

         25  know the details for the case. Maybe she should, you
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          2  know, definitely have been let loose. I'm not

          3  complaining about this specific case, but are there

          4  people who have been provisional employees, in some

          5  cases about 20 years or more?

          6                 MR. DOBROWSKY: I would imagine there

          7  may be some.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I would think

          9  that many of them wanted to become, let's say,

         10  full-time, permanent, whatever it's called,

         11  employees. I was wondering if somebody is good

         12  enough to do the job that long, what would create a

         13  climate where they would not be able to get to that

         14  next step?

         15                 MR. DOBROWSKY: That's --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It's a

         17  difficult question, and it's not loaded. I'm not

         18  throwing a grenade out here.

         19                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Well, it's possible

         20  that they may not have been reached on a list at

         21  some point in time. Perhaps they missed an exam, it

         22  depends. On certain titles we haven't given exams as

         23  often as we wish to, and it's possible that this

         24  person could have been in that sort of -- fell in

         25  between the cracks on that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And we'll be

          3  working along those lines, I'm sure, as well.

          4                 Do you know which agencies have the

          5  most provisional employees?

          6                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Off the top of my

          7  head, I would have to imagine it's the larger

          8  agencies, just by --

          9                 MR. PALUSZEK: And we could certainly

         10  get those numbers for you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Out of

         12  curiosity, and where we would be going from here.

         13                 MR. PALUSZEK: We also, in addition to

         14  this report, pursuant to Local Law 50, we do produce

         15  a provisional report on a quarterly basis that we

         16  submit to the Council, so we'll certainly -- which

         17  is actually on line, I believe. We will get that

         18  information to you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I appreciate

         20  that. I think it is an interesting area to delve

         21  into to see if your agency can't be working with

         22  this particular issue, perhaps in a different way,

         23  maybe, of catch-up more, probably you may have

         24  wanted to and see.

         25                 All right, well thank you. Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          4  Council Member Nelson.

          5                 If we can just get into kind of

          6  details regarding comparisons between the basic

          7  approach basically 2004, and the current 2005

          8  report.

          9                 Open competitive eligible list

         10  increased by one in 2005. It went from 55 in 2004 to

         11  56 in 2005. Can you just delve into a little bit of

         12  an explanation on why you think that was one

         13  increase in the eligibility list?

         14                 MR. PALUSZEK: I would point out that

         15  the number of open competitive, in any given year

         16  DCAS has the ability to give perhaps somewhere in

         17  excess of 100 exams a year, and that necessarily

         18  will generate the number of lists that will be in

         19  existence at any given time.

         20                 It's also a function of how many open

         21  competitive exams we give and how many promotion

         22  exams we give.

         23                 So, the fact that open competitive

         24  lists look as though they went down by one doesn't

         25  necessarily mean that less exams were given because
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          2  of the way promotion lists are established.

          3                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Also, another issue is

          4  when you compare just 55 to 56, it doesn't take into

          5  account the complexity of examinations. Some

          6  examinations can require several of DCAS's examiners

          7  working on it concurrently in order to get the

          8  examination prepared, graded and established,

          9  whereas other examinations may require only one

         10  person working on it.

         11                 So, it's hard to really make a direct

         12  comparison in terms of whether or not, how

         13  productive we are just by looking at numbers because

         14  the types of lists that you create from the

         15  examinations is something that we have to look at.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Would you give

         17  the same explanation to the promotion lists which

         18  went from 154 down to 127.

         19                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Promotion lists are a

         20  little strange in that you can give an examination,

         21  a promotion examination. You can come out with seven

         22  or eight separate agency lists on it.

         23                 You can also create an examination

         24  for a title, for example, principal administrative

         25  associate, which is used by virtually every agency
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          2  in the City, you may have 30 or 40 eligible lists

          3  established.

          4                 So, even though you may put in about

          5  the same amount of work on some of these, on

          6  different exams, you wind up creating different

          7  number of eligible lists because of the usage of the

          8  lists by agencies.

          9                 So, the promotion list, it's kind of

         10  hard to make a real direct comparison in terms of

         11  whether one, you know, the amount of work that you

         12  put into any one exam, how much of a bang you get

         13  back in terms of the number of lists that are

         14  established.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: How would you

         16  then characterize in comparison generally between

         17  2004/2005 the status the exam is given by DCAS, you

         18  know, in comparing those numbers?

         19                 MR. DOBROWSKY: We came out with a

         20  number of computer exams which were very labor

         21  intensive in terms of their rating.  These are for

         22  the most part education and experience tests, where

         23  you need a number of examiners who have to look at

         24  each application and make a determination as to what

         25  the experiences of the person applying.
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          2                 This takes a lot of work, much more

          3  so than the multiple choice test where once the

          4  examination is created, it then becomes a machine

          5  rated operation.

          6                 In addition to the rating of the

          7  computer exams, we also have issues regarding

          8  appeals, where people feel that they deserve more

          9  credit. These, again, are time consuming.

         10                 Another major exam that we came up

         11  with is staff analyst during this period, and that's

         12  another examination that tends to be somewhat labor

         13  intensive in terms of rating the experience,

         14  reviewing the experience of the individuals.

         15                 On the whole I think it was a rather

         16  productive year. We pretty matched the numbers that

         17  we had last year, but we did establish several

         18  rather complicated exams this year.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The number of

         20  agencies using the list went from 46 to 41. A little

         21  explanation for that?

         22                 MR. DOBROWSKY: There are some

         23  agencies that are very small, public administrators,

         24  some of the District Attorneys' offices which tend

         25  to hire many non-competitive employees - the
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          2  District Attorneys, investigators and so on. So, the

          3  drop in that for one reason I think has occurred as

          4  a result of the initial hiring that occurred from

          5  the principal administrative associate list where

          6  virtually every agency have that title, as well as

          7  clerical associate.

          8                 Once the agencies made appointments

          9  from those lists, they really had nothing else, no

         10  further appointments to be made because of the

         11  relatively small size of the agency's low turnover.

         12                 So, the agencies that sort of fell

         13  off during this past year tended to be the smaller

         14  agencies that had very little hirings in any given

         15  year.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Of course that

         17  would change from year-to-year.

         18                 Again, a real, a number that stuck

         19  out, as far as I'm concerned, with the provisionals,

         20  both provisional appointments and provisional

         21  promotions dropped drastically; your explanation?

         22                 MR. DOBROWSKY: We do target titles

         23  where there are a number of provisionals serving,

         24  and we happen to have hit it, you know, on the head

         25  this year in 2005. So, a lot of titles for which
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          2  agencies were hiring provisionally, we provided

          3  lists for those agencies from which they could make

          4  permanent appointments. So, that resulted in a

          5  decrease in a number of provisional hires.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And, again, I

          7  just want to confirm that the report that's issued

          8  is a calendar year report; correct?

          9                 MR. DOBROWSKY: That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         11                 The amount of people CNS'd for the

         12  last time, over 1,000, have you seen that number

         13  fluctuate over the last two years?

         14                 MR. DOBROWSKY: No. I think what

         15  happened this year is that we've seen much more

         16  activity by agencies using lists. As a result, we

         17  wind up having more CNS's, the more interviews, the

         18  more people that are called in by agencies. Any

         19  selection process results in one person being

         20  appointed and two others who are not appointed by

         21  the Rule of Three. So, the more appointments you

         22  have, the more people tend to be CNS'd also. So,

         23  it's so much a direct rise in terms of, almost a

         24  direct correlation between those two numbers.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Which agency do
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          2  you know of, based on the report or, again, that

          3  institutional knowledge, what agency would you know

          4  of has the most provisionals?

          5                 MR. DOBROWSKY: That I'm not sure of

          6  offhand. I can double check and get the numbers from

          7  our report.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And you know,

          9  again, generally speaking, why an agency would have

         10  more provisionals than another? It would be the

         11  bases of the job or another factor?

         12                 MR. DOBROWSKY: A number of factors.

         13  The bigger agencies tend to have more provisionals.

         14  Some titles have very high turnover. We give a

         15  number of examinations for the social service

         16  titles. We see high turnover there. Some of the

         17  uniformed titles, the enforcement titles, we see a

         18  high turnover, so we tend to give those

         19  examinations, we try to give examinations in a

         20  manner that would tend to meet the agency's

         21  requirements, but sometimes the turnover just tends

         22  to be much higher than what we anticipate.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Who notifies an

         24  individual when they've been removed from the list?

         25  Whose job is it to notify that individual?
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          2                 MR. DOBROWSKY: When an individual is

          3  called in for an interview, if the individual is,

          4  let's say CNS'd three times by the agency, that

          5  agency is required to send a notification to the

          6  candidate, informing the candidate --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It's the

          8  particular specific agency doing the interview?

          9                 MR. DOBROWSKY: That's correct, yes.

         10                 And there is also on the notification

         11  an indication of how the person may appeal or be

         12  restored to a list.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Is there any

         14  circumstance where the person is removed from the

         15  list without being interviewed?

         16                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Without being

         17  interviewed on the promotion list, an agency has the

         18  work history of the individual, so it's not

         19  necessary to have the eligibles come in for

         20  interviews. The supervisors may have given their

         21  evaluations and their recommendations, so we have an

         22  indication what the person is capable of doing, what

         23  the person has done, so interviews aren't always

         24  carried for promotion lists.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: In those slight
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          2  instances, I guess when a person is removed without

          3  an interview, again, who would be the agency to

          4  notify that person, if there is no interview in

          5  progress?

          6                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Well, on open

          7  competitive list they require to interview the

          8  people, so it would only be on the promotion list.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And who would

         10  notify that individual?

         11                 MR. DOBROWSKY: The agency where the

         12  person is employed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. I'd have

         14  more faith if DCAS did the notification.

         15                 A growing concern I have is that

         16  people of being removed from the list and not

         17  getting notified. That's another, again, complaint

         18  I've been getting. And again, knowing that DCAS

         19  really does, in my opinion, a fine job in managing

         20  these lists, I would be, again, more comfortable if

         21  DCAS was doing the notification. Leaving it up to

         22  the agencies, I just believe that certain agencies

         23  do a better job than others in notifying individuals

         24  and also in using, in utilizing these lists

         25  properly. So, that's another issue I'd just like to
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          2  bring to your attention.

          3                 Any other questions? No.

          4                 Gentlemen, I want to thank you for

          5  your time here today and for your efforts on this

          6  report. It is helpful. And the discussion, of

          7  course, does not end today. We will follow up after

          8  this hearing, after of course hearing testimony. But

          9  I do want to thank DCAS, Commissioner Hirst and the

         10  entire DCAS team for their efforts on this report

         11  and in working with our Committee for the sake of

         12  our City workforce.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our next panel

         16  is Robert Crogan from the OSA and Joan Doheny.

         17                 I want to thank this panel for being

         18  here today. Thank you very much. If you could please

         19  state your name and give your testimony?

         20                 MR. CROGAAN: Robert Crogan.

         21  Organization of Staff Analysts.

         22                 MS. DOHENY: Joan Doheny, Organization

         23  of Staff Analysts.

         24                 MR. CROGAAN: I'd like to start off by

         25  thanking the Committee for continuing to pay very
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          2  close attention to these matters. We were very

          3  pleased with the legislation we went through two

          4  years ago, and we're very pleased with the reports

          5  coming out now.

          6                 One of the things that the

          7  Chairperson of the Committee commented on was what

          8  we could refine these reports as we got to

          9  understand them better, and I think that's very

         10  true.

         11                 On the issue of the, one of the

         12  points brought up during the questioning by Nelson,

         13  the question: how could a person be 18 or 20 years

         14  provisional, and I must admit, as a 40-year civil

         15  servant, I find that to be a very good question, and

         16  I'm not really sure we could get an answer we'd be

         17  entirely thrilled with if we looked into it closely.

         18                 My associate, who used to be the

         19  Chairperson of our organization's chapter in DCAS,

         20  had a couple of other questions that she wanted to

         21  bring up.

         22                 Joan.

         23                 MS. DOHENY: Well, the report that

         24  DCAS is currently preparing, it seems that it's for

         25  the lists that were produced in the current calendar
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          2  year, but the lists that were produced in the three

          3  previous calendar years should also be moving,

          4  unless they've been exhausted. So, I think the

          5  report should be expanded to include movement on

          6  those other lists.

          7                 The report also does not seem to

          8  require that it includes the number of eligibles on

          9  the list. It gives a title and an agency and it

         10  shows there were so many appointments made, but how

         11  many appointments out of how many names were on the

         12  list to begin with, or remaining, if it was a list

         13  from a previous year.

         14                 DCAS said it was not particularly

         15  aware of difficulties in moving the lists. It's my

         16  understanding that when a list is certified to an

         17  agency, because there are provisionals serving, the

         18  agency has 30 days to come back with appointments,

         19  and I know that in many cases, including our

         20  administrative staff analyst list, those lists sat

         21  in the agencies for many months, including the DCAS

         22  list which was held for about four months before any

         23  appointments were made.

         24                 Then I believe Mr. Dobrowsky has the

         25  capacity for doing 100 exams a year, and it seems to
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          2  me that number was just pulled out of the air. I

          3  don't know by the number of exams you mean exams per

          4  title or specific exams. At one time I worked in

          5  Exams in DCAS. I gave personally two exams per week.

          6  That was 104 exams a year. So, why the agency could

          7  only produce 100 now, you know, I don't know. And

          8  back then the exams were much more complicated. They

          9  included multiple choice, essay, perhaps an oral,

         10  perhaps a stress oral. Now-a-days it was a one-day

         11  test for staff analyst, multiple choice test, so the

         12  exams seem to be simpler. So, I don't know why the

         13  number would be so low.

         14                 MR. CROGAAN: But generally speaking

         15  we are extremely pleased that the spotlight is being

         16  shown upon the work that is going on, because I'm

         17  sure that everybody here is very much in favor of an

         18  effective and working civil service, and without

         19  attention, it might tend to stray away from that.

         20  With attention, I think we will keep it working the

         21  way it's supposed to work in a way that it was

         22  originally designed back in 1901.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, I want to

         24  thank your efforts, as far as for your membership

         25  and for the City workforce in general, working with
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          2  my Committee, and obviously along with DCAS and

          3  doing what we can for our promotional and working

          4  opportunities for our City workforce.

          5                 I have a question for both of you. If

          6  it was to say that we were looking to in the City

          7  budget allocate more money for DCAS, and whether it

          8  be more money for testing centers, hopefully more

          9  money for more frequent exams, do you think this is

         10  money well spent in our budget that we can possibly

         11  increase the DCAS budget if we found out that

         12  efficiency-wise it would create more exams or more

         13  efficient use of the list, would you think that's

         14  money well spent in the budget?

         15                 MR. CROGAAN: I would absolutely

         16  support such a move, the Department of Citywide

         17  Administrative Services Personnel Branch is the

         18  watchdog over the City of New York, the government.

         19  Now, there's a third of a million people working

         20  here, and DCAS is the one who is supposed to find

         21  the people who are most meritorious and who most

         22  fit. They can't do so if they haven't got the

         23  resources.

         24                 So, any addition to the resources of

         25  personnel section of DCAS, is something that the
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          2  Organization of Staff Analysts would strongly

          3  endorse on behalf of the taxpayers because I think

          4  we would all benefit from it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And given your

          6  opportunity here today to testify at the hearing,

          7  and Joan I appreciate your suggestions, as far as

          8  future reports, but generally speaking, any

          9  suggestions for DCAS and what issues they should

         10  look at or possibly work with to improve, you know,

         11  again, opportunities in the future?

         12                 Either one.

         13                 MS. DOHENY: Well, it seems to me DCAS

         14  doesn't really have any enforcement power.  When an

         15  agency doesn't return certification, they make a

         16  phone call, and saying we're waiting for your list

         17  of appointments, and if it doesn't come that week,

         18  they can call again. They have no enforcement power.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Just explain

         20  that a little bit more. A request is made and --

         21                 MS. DOHENY: When they certify a list

         22  to an agency, and they certify it because there are

         23  provisionals serving, so according to civil service

         24  law, these people must be replaced by permanent

         25  civil servants. When the agency does not return the
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          2  list on time, they make a phone call, and they have

          3  no other power to do anything else.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

          5                 MR. CROGAAN: One other point. Since

          6  we're into the area of reporting, and it's getting a

          7  little bit interesting as we go deeper into it. One

          8  question which I guess we could ask could be, how

          9  many people are serving provisionally as police

         10  officers, which there might be none. How many are

         11  serving as provisional sergeants, how many are

         12  serving as provisional tenants, and if we are able

         13  in the field of the uniforms to avoid provisionals,

         14  why is it in the area of civilians we can't? It's an

         15  interesting question.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I want to thank

         17  you very much for your time and testimony today.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 MR. CROGAAN: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I look forward

         21  to working with you in the future.

         22                 Next is a panel of three. We have

         23  Michael O'Toole, from Marine Engineers Benevolent

         24  Association, if you would come forward. Rene

         25  Francis, and Michael Brandon.
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          2                 And, gentlemen, before you start I

          3  want to make a note that I want to thank DCAS for

          4  remaining in the room and listening to our

          5  testimony. A representative from DCAS is still here,

          6  so I appreciate their time with us here today, and

          7  remaining.

          8                 Gentlemen, please state your name and

          9  give your testimony.

         10                 MR. O'TOOLE: My name is Michael

         11  O'Toole. I'm a union representative for the Marine

         12  Engineer Benevolent Association, who represents the

         13  licensed officers of the Staten Island Ferry, and

         14  also the New York City Fireboats.

         15                 If the person from DCAS could

         16  identify himself? That's you, okay. I'm glad

         17  somebody is here. I have some questions, I don't

         18  know if they can be answered?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You can ask them

         20  and then we'll follow-up with answers to you.

         21                 MR. O'TOOLE: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: If that's not a

         23  problem.

         24                 MR. O'TOOLE: I thank the Committee

         25  for this opportunity first. It is the opinion of the

                                                            38

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  union that the Civil Service --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. O'Toole,

          4  just speak louder and a little closer.

          5                 MR. O'TOOLE: It is the opinion of the

          6  union that the civil service process is being

          7  circumvented by the abuse of the One-In-Three Rule

          8  in certain departments. While we understand that

          9  there is a valid reason to have a mechanism such as

         10  this place, it is unfortunately being willfully

         11  manipulated to achieve results it was not designed

         12  for. There have been many cases where people's lives

         13  and careers have been literally destroyed by the

         14  intentional misuse of this rule.

         15                 It has been used arbitrarily,

         16  punitively, maliciously, and to achieve political

         17  results. The worst thing a candidate can hear is the

         18  term considered but not selected, so eloquently

         19  coined as CNS. There really is no recourse for them.

         20                 When a person is not selected it

         21  affects not only them, but it also deprives the City

         22  of a potentially valuable employee.

         23                 That's my statement. I have a few

         24  questions here. Some of them are rhetorical. Should

         25  I just go down the list? Okay.
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          2                 Why do some departments appear to

          3  have such a high number of not selected individuals?

          4  What can we do to make sure that tests in the titles

          5  with a small number of people are given in a timely

          6  manner, not every ten to 12 years, or sometimes

          7  more.

          8                 What can we do to ensure this does

          9  not continue? If the list has only -- has less than

         10  three candidates, is the list still valuable? Why is

         11  there such a large number of provisional out of

         12  title and step-up employees?

         13                 Where is the accountability? How can

         14  the process be made more fair and transparent? And

         15  why has, this is a specific test question: Why has

         16  promotion to marine engineer been eliminated from

         17  the Department of Transportation? There is many,

         18  many provisionals in this title. That's all I have.

         19                 MR. BRANDON: Okay, I'm Mike Brandon.

         20  I'm representing the ferry workers, nonlicensed,

         21  Local 333, the International Longshoremen's

         22  Association.

         23                 My question is to DCAS, there is no

         24  one here to answer it, but we just had a deck hands

         25  test 4028, and there was 180 people on that list, I
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          2  think 119 were hired, and how were the other people

          3  on the outside notified, if they were at all, for

          4  the interview? And is there proof of that, or a

          5  record of that?

          6                 And also, it seems like they hire

          7  what they want and then try to kill the list. I know

          8  personally we sent more people up to get

          9  reestablished to the list, and what is, you know, do

         10  they have to be notified, certified mail? I mean, I

         11  have guys out on tugboats who are away for three

         12  weeks, a month, and if they don't show up for the

         13  interview, they just pass them up so they don't

         14  consider them. I mean, I don't know what the

         15  criteria is, and if, in fact, DOT is doing it all

         16  all. It just seems like an awful lot of people left

         17  on that list that weren't hired, and it seems like,

         18  through DCAS, the agency asked to downgrade the

         19  qualifications for certain titles, which leaves none

         20  of my men as deck hands any room for promotion

         21  anymore because they're just hiring people right out

         22  of the academies with no experience when it was

         23  always an experience titled. You had to have

         24  experience on deck before you become a captain or a

         25  mate, it was a promotional thing and it seems like
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          2  they just bypass it. And now, you know, a deck hand

          3  can't compete with a guy coming out of Kings Point

          4  or, you know, Fort Schueller, even if he has 20, 30

          5  years in the industry. So, to me it's not fair.

          6                 And I also want to ask DCAS, if you

          7  were made probable permanent off of this list, if

          8  you were hired off the list, aren't you supposed to

          9  take an oath and go up and sign some kind of

         10  paperwork that you are on probation and the length

         11  of your probation, and if that wasn't done, are you

         12  in permanent status because the agency says so? It

         13  seems like it wasn't done correctly to me, and they

         14  used that to discipline their workers. You know,

         15  that's their loophole, okay you're on probation

         16  again, even though you've been there, it's been ten

         17  years since the last deck hands test, if you had any

         18  kind of infraction, violation on the outside of the

         19  job to get rid of you. It's just not fair. It's not

         20  fair at all, and the frequency in between tests, I

         21  have a title as Ferry Terminal Supervisor, there

         22  hasn't been a test in over ten years. There's only

         23  two remaining permanent ferry supervisors, and the

         24  rest are all provisional, and it's handpicked and

         25  it's not fair. It's a civil service title. There
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          2  should be a test. There should be frequently --

          3  every year we ask for a test, and every year we get

          4  a letter back saying not this year. So, I mean where

          5  does this go from here? I don't know.

          6                 But I have a lot of concerns, but

          7  that's a few questions I have for DCAS, and maybe I

          8  can get an answer on them, and I thank you for your

          9  time. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. Gentlemen,

         11  both of you raised issues and I just want to go

         12  through some of them, and I know Council Member

         13  Nelson has a question as well.

         14                 Again, Mr. O'Toole, you mentioned

         15  accountability and transparency. Obviously, that's

         16  what we're looking to work out toward in working

         17  with DCAS Administration, some accountability on

         18  behalf of the agency, transparency amongst the

         19  process and make sure that's done correctly. We were

         20  hopeful that this report lends us some assistance in

         21  that direction, and in the past few years I think it

         22  has, and I think there is still work to do.

         23                 You mentioned the marine engineer

         24  exam was eliminated, is that correct?

         25                 MR. O'TOOLE: The promotion to marine
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          2  engineer, which would have been --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: When was that

          4  eliminated?

          5                 MR. O'TOOLE: About six months ago.

          6                 Historically that test was in effect

          7  for possibly decades. It was eliminated a few years

          8  back because they felt there was no need. I spoke to

          9  people at DCAS. I assured them that there was a

         10  need. They reinstituted a test continuously, and

         11  then one day it just disappeared. And when I

         12  inquired why, I was told that the Department has

         13  requested it be removed because they felt there was

         14  no further need.

         15                 In the meantime, the job is filled

         16  with provisional, step-up and out-of-title

         17  employees.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: How many years

         19  on the job do you have?

         20                 MR. O'TOOLE: I had 27 years. Just

         21  recently retired.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And Mr. Brandon,

         23  how many years on the job do you have?

         24                 MR. BRANDON: With the City of New

         25  York it's four and a half years, in the industry 30

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  years.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And obviously,

          4  Mr. Brandon, you mentioned the issues you're having

          5  with notification. You heard earlier I had

          6  questioned DCAS about that. Again, it's a prevalent

          7  question that I've been getting from different, you

          8  know, workers as far as notification. That's an

          9  issue that obviously we will work on subsequent to

         10  this hearing.

         11                 I'm going to offer you both the

         12  opportunity, when you get a chance, if you forward

         13  me any or your concerns or questions you may have, I

         14  will of course forward them to the Commissioner,

         15  hopefully we can get you answers to your questions.

         16                 Unfortunately, the way the Committee

         17  hearing is set up, true, these subsequent witnesses

         18  to the Administration can't ask them questions, but

         19  by all means, you should be given the opportunity to

         20  do so. So, if you give us the questions, we'll get

         21  you the answers.

         22                 MR. O'TOOLE: Okay. Appreciate it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: We have

         24  questions from Council Member Nelson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes, I'd like
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          2  to thank Mr. O'Toole and Mr. Brandon for coming here

          3  today.

          4                 It was something you said if we could

          5  get more information about it, the specifics. You

          6  used the words "punitive" --

          7                 MR. O'TOOLE: Absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Or "political"

          9  results.

         10                 MR. O'TOOLE: Absolutely.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: If we can get

         12  some of that information, hopefully we could delve a

         13  little deeper into that as well.

         14                 MR. O'TOOLE: A very sensitive area

         15  because --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: You could tell

         17  us but then you'd have to kill us, right?

         18                 MR. O'TOOLE: It's not that. Those

         19  people may be killed. I'm being facetious.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: A Serpico deal

         21  there.

         22                 MR. O'TOOLE: I'm being facetious but

         23  there could be consequences.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I got you.

         25  Yes, so any specifics that you have, I think this
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          2  Committee would be interested in receiving that.

          3                 To get into your line of work, were

          4  you in the Navy?

          5                 MR. O'TOOLE: Actually I was in the

          6  Navy, and then I sailed with the Merchant fleet on

          7  United States flagged vessels for a couple of years,

          8  and then one day by happenstance I was at a

          9  Christening and the person asked me would you

         10  consider working for the ferry, which I never had

         11  considered, and 25 years later. It's very fortuitous

         12  for me, because I don't think I'd be married with

         13  three beautiful kids today. I'd still be a sailor.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: My brother was

         15  in the Navy.

         16                 Mr. Brandon.

         17                 MR. BRANDON: Yes, I started on the

         18  tugboats in 1976. And, you know, I was a deck hand

         19  for many years, then I became captain. And I applied

         20  for this, hired provisionally. I'm on this last

         21  list, and, you know, permanent, but the last test

         22  was, you know, ten years ago. So, I'm finally being

         23  made permanent now, if I was at all. I mean, I never

         24  signed anything.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It is of
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          2  interest because not many people know, I believe,

          3  this job career.

          4                 MR. BRANDON: Right.

          5                 MR. O'TOOLE: Mike is actually in a

          6  very tenuous situation because he is a provisional,

          7  probationary now, employee, yet he's sitting here

          8  testifying.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Gutsy.

         10                 MR. BRANDON: I don't know, just one

         11  thing, we have guys in our industry, you know,

         12  well-qualified, but now it seems like you have to

         13  graduate one of these two schools to get a job here.

         14  I mean, it's not bad. I mean, we got hands-on

         15  experience compared to none, but they dropped the

         16  qualification.

         17                 I'm not saying -- some of them are

         18  very good, don't get me wrong, and very intelligent,

         19  but, you know, you can't compare that with hands-on

         20  experience.

         21                 MR. O'TOOLE: It used to be a two-year

         22  requirement for actual sea-going experience.

         23                 MR. BRANDON: Sea time.

         24                 MR. O'TOOLE: You had to be at sea for

         25  two years.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Right.

          3                 MR. O'TOOLE: Not worked in the

          4  industry for two years, but at sea two years, which

          5  could take you four years to get if you worked six

          6  months a year.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: In the

          8  military we called it OJT.

          9                 MR. O'TOOLE: Right. Well, in the

         10  military you got 365 days a year in, but when you're

         11  sailing in private industry, you typically would

         12  work six months a year. So, if you achieved two

         13  years sea time, you've been working four years.

         14                 You get a guy that comes in, he knows

         15  his way around, and, again, as Mike said, some of

         16  these kids from the Academy, they're great, but you

         17  know what? There's nothing like real-world

         18  experience. We're getting people coming in here

         19  without one day of real sea time. Yeah, they worked

         20  on the training ships. Training ships are no the

         21  real world.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Should be

         23  factored into the equation, of course,

         24  significantly.

         25                 MR. O'TOOLE: Well, yes, of course
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          2  there should be some allowance that these guys get

          3  some equivalent sea time for their training and

          4  their training experience on the ship, but it still

          5  does not even come close to two years of actual sea

          6  time.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Well, I thank

          8  you for your service to the City. Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         11  Council Member Nelson.

         12                 Gentlemen, how much of a change have

         13  you seen with regards to your workers' issues? How

         14  much have they occurred after the unfortunate

         15  incident that occurred with the Staten Island Ferry?

         16                 MR. O'TOOLE: In what regard?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Have workers

         18  been treated differently? Has the hiring and

         19  promotional process been treated differently? Have

         20  there been different jobs created or taken away?

         21                 MR. O'TOOLE: Yes to all of the above.

         22  There have been many jobs created. The process now

         23  for hiring seems weighted again towards people that

         24  can come in, and the fact that they are provisional,

         25  they're easily muscled because they're fearful that
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          2  they'll lose their job.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Have you seen an

          4  increase in the amount of provisionals there after

          5  the accident or?

          6                 MR. O'TOOLE: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes, and the

          8  reason I bring up the incident is because for the

          9  ferry operators and the deck hands, obviously,

         10  that's the benchmark and tragedy, they might have

         11  caused some change.

         12                 MR. O'TOOLE: Well, we were welcome to

         13  a lot of the change. Our union, the Marine Engineers

         14  Benevolent Association was after them for years

         15  regarding training.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So, some good

         17  has come out of what they've implemented?

         18                 MR. O'TOOLE: Without a doubt some

         19  good has come out of it. I'm not going to say no.

         20  I'm very grateful for a lot of the things that came

         21  out of the unfortunate loss of life, because the

         22  training in some respects is better, and, yet there

         23  is still room for improvement, if I could put it

         24  like that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: If I may
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          2  respectively, how many members or workers are we

          3  speaking of when we're talking about deck hands and

          4  we're talking about other marine --

          5                 MR. BRANDON: Over 425, I guess,

          6  right?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Deck hands?

          8                 MR. BRANDON: Oh, deck hands? It's a

          9  little over 200 deck hands, and I have also

         10  approximately 100 oilers. Oilers, marine oilers,

         11  yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And Mr. O'Toole,

         13  how many workers do you think --

         14                 MR. O'TOOLE: We represent the

         15  captains, the assistant captains, the deck officer,

         16  which is the mate, the chief engineers, the marine

         17  engineers, and I would say we would have a total of

         18  maybe 125. There's been a large increase.

         19  Percentage-wise, there are a number of workers.

         20  There's been an increase in the number of members,

         21  because they've been assigned to dock duties.

         22                 That's another thing, the senior guys

         23  have been assigned to the dock, and the junior guys

         24  have been working on the boats. It's kind of like

         25  they're getting their experience on the run here.
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          2  So, there has been an increase in the number of

          3  employees.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You both have

          5  obviously raised some very interesting concerns to

          6  me regarding your industry and obviously where your

          7  workers are, and I think you have your issues

          8  defined.

          9                 MR. O'TOOLE: I can go on for days,

         10  Councilman?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm sorry?

         12                 MR. O'TOOLE: I can go on for days.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. I look

         14  forward to doing that, because for the 200 deck

         15  hands, 100 oilers, and the over 100, you know,

         16  captains engineers, it means something.

         17                 So, what I would like for you to do

         18  is again, get to me your concerns, whether they be

         19  in questions, I'll even take suggestions that you

         20  may have, as far as suggestions that maybe DCAS can

         21  implement, and forward them to me, or obviously

         22  we'll forward them to the Commissioner.

         23                 MR. O'TOOLE: Okay. One of the

         24  specifics I had stated in here, is the list still

         25  viable when there is less than three members, when
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          2  there is less than three candidates on the list?

          3                 The reason I ask that, because right

          4  now there is a captains' list with two members, they

          5  have considered, yet not selected, one individual,

          6  and they are now saying those two individuals don't

          7  have the opportunity. Twelve years before the last

          8  captains' test. So, now the three people that are on

          9  this list, they're saying, well, if the list is

         10  dead, see ya later, maybe ten years from now. You

         11  know?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And you're

         13  saying 12 years ago, that they --

         14                 MR. O'TOOLE: Twelve years ago was the

         15  last test. So, now they're giving the test. These

         16  guys may pass the test, they're viable candidates.

         17  One was considered but not selected, there's two

         18  remaining on the list. They tell these two

         19  gentlemen, we're sorry, the list isn't viable

         20  because there's not three candidates. So, now take

         21  the next test, which could be ten or 12 years.

         22                 MR. BRANDON: Now we're back to the

         23  provisionals again, and it's not a test anymore,

         24  it's pick and choose who you want.

         25                 MR. O'TOOLE: Right. But those two
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          2  guys who passed the Civil Service test, they might

          3  get the job, they might not.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And to your

          5  knowledge, there is not another test scheduled?

          6                 MR. BRANDON: Absolutely not.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

          8                 Again, these are the issues I like to

          9  know about. So, I look forward for you to contact my

         10  office or forward me the information. And like I

         11  said, we'll try and get you answers here concerning

         12  this.

         13                 MR. O'TOOLE: Thank you for the

         14  opportunity.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         16                 MR. BRANDON: Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I appreciate

         18  your time and testimony.

         19                 There being no other questions, I

         20  want to thank you all for participating, and again,

         21  I look forward to our continued discussions with

         22  DCAS and the Administration again. I thank you for

         23  remaining here.

         24                 The next hearing for the Civil

         25  Service and Labor Committee will be November 27th,
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          2  agenda to be determined. And again, thank you very

          3  much for being here. Meeting adjourned.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 2:15 p.m.)
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